
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Philippa Turvey on 01733 452460 as soon as possible.

AB
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 26 JULY 2016
3.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification” that has been disclosed to the Monitoring Officer.

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 14 June 2016 5 - 12

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 15/02209/FUL - 8 Lincoln Road, Glinton, Peterborough, PE6 
7AW

13 - 28

5.2 16/00829/FUL - Land South of Former Crown Public House, 
Lincoln Road, Glinton, Peterborough

29 - 46

5.3 16/00439/FUL - 62 Cromwell Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 
2EG

47 - 52

6. Planning Compliance Quarterly Report on Activity and Performance 
April to June 2016

53 - 56

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

Public Document Pack



In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at:

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recordin
g.pdf

Committee Members:

Councillors: Harper (Chairman), Serluca (Vice Chairman), Bull, Casey, Hiller, Stokes, Martin, 
Sylvester, Bond, Clark and Ash

Substitutes: Councillors: Bisby, Iqbal, Sandford and Saltmarsh

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Philippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20%20Recording.pdf


CASE OFFICERS:

Planning and Development Team: Nicholas Harding, Lee Collins, Andrew Cundy, Paul Smith, 
Mike Roberts, Louise Lewis, Janet Maclennan, Astrid 
Hawley, David Jolley, Louise Lovegrove, Vicky Hurrell, 
Amanda McSherry, Sam Falco, Matt Thomson, Chris 
Edwards, Michael Freeman

Minerals and Waste: Theresa Nicholl, Alan Jones

Compliance: Nigel Barnes, Anthony Whittle, Karen Cole, Julie Robshaw

NOTES:

1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer 
or Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering Services as soon as possible.

2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  
Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.  

3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 
implications for that policy, except where expressly stated.

4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 
specifically referred to in the report itself.

5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
received after their preparation.



This page is intentionally left blank



AB 
 

    MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE  
HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 14 JUNE 2016 

 
Members Present: Councillors Harper (Chairman), Serluca (Vice Chairman), Bull, Casey, 

Hiller, Hussain, Bond, and Ash 
 
Officers Present:   Simon Ireland, Principal Engineer (Highways) 

 Ruth Lea, Planning and Highways Lawyer  
Lee Collins, Development Management Manager  
Vicky Hurrell, Principal Development Management Officer  

 Pippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 

  
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sylvester, Martin, and Stokes. 
 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 

Councillor Hiller declared that he knew Michael Sly with regard to item 5.2, however he 
wished it to be known he had not discussed the item with him and had no prejudice. 

 
Councillor Casey declared that he sat on the Cycling Forum as a consultant with regard 
to item 5.4, and had no prejudice.  

 
3.    Members’ Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor 

 

Councillor Ash advised that, with reference to item 5.1, upon legal advice, he would be 
withdrawing from committee and making representation as a Ward Councillor. 
 

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 12 April 2016 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2016 were approved as a correct record. 
 
5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters 
 

5.1 16/00835/R3FUL - The John Mansfield Centre, Western Avenue, Dogsthorpe, 
Peterborough 

 

Councillor Ash left the Committee at this point. 
 
The Committee was presented with a proposal which occupied the site of the former 
John Mansfield School within an existing residential area and was allocated for 
residential development in the local plan. The application for consideration was for a two 
storey contemporary new medical centre comprising of six consulting rooms, minor 
treatment rooms, health care and a pharmacy including waiting areas and store rooms 
with room for further expansion.  
 
The Principal Development Management Officer provided an overview of the application 
and highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update report.  

5



 
Councillors Saltmarsh and Ash addressed the Committee and responded to questions 
from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 It was agreed this derelict site should be developed although reservations were 
previously felt with regard to access around Arcacia Avenue, however this would 
be resolved within the plan.  

 Parking spaces, entrance, and egress would hopefully ease parking on 
surrounding roads as on road parking was to be discouraged.  

 Plans also included relocating the bus stops. It was suggested that these should 
be erected with shelters designed for use by both patients of the new medical 
facility and college students.   

 
Mr Wright and Mr Hills addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 It was emphasised that residents who had previously signed a petition regarding 
the development of this site were now happy for the plans to proceed having had 
sight of the current plan. 

 It was stressed that levels of traffic had increased since the Welland Road traffic 
calming measures had been introduced.  

 
The Committee expressed for the existing surgery however it was felt this application 
would be of benefit to the local community. A query was raised in relation to why a Tree 
Preservation Order had been granted on the site so recently, considering officers were 
now happy for it to be removed. The Principal Development Management Officer advised 
that a balanced view was taken on the condition of the tress and the benefits to the 
scheme and, as there were no objections by the Tree Officer, it had been decided to 
remove them.  
 
A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per officer 
recommendation, subject to the conditions set out in the report. The motion was carried 
unanimously. 

 
RESOLVED: (unanimous) that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions set out in the report. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 

 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 
relevant policies of the development plan and specifically: 

 whilst the proposal would result in the loss of 0.4 hectares of land allocated for 
residential development, it was not considered that this would materially affect the 
ability to deliver the housing provision set out over the Local Plan period; 

 the proposed development would not prejudice the ability to deliver housing on the 
remaining residential land allocation, in accordance with Policy SA3.24 of the 
Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012); 

 the proposed medical centre and pharmacy would not result in any unacceptable 
impact upon the character, appearance or visual amenity of the surrounding area, 
in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

 adequate parking and access would be provided to meet the needs of the 
proposal and no undue impact would result to the safety of the public highway, in 
accordance with Policy CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and 
Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

6



 the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact to the amenities of 
neighbouring occupants, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD (2012); 

 the proposal would not result in unacceptable harm to the landscape amenity of 
the surrounding area, in accordance with Policy PP16 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012); and 

 the proposed development would adequately deal with surface water run-off to 
ensure no increased flood risk results within or beyond the application site, in 
accordance with Policy CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011). 

 

5.2 16/00160/OUT - Land West of Sandpit Road, Sandpit Road, Thorney, 
Peterborough 

 

Councillor Ash re-joined the Committee at this point. 
 
The Committee was presented with a plan to develop a site of 4.8 hectares with 91 
properties and open space with the demolition of 3 properties on the edge of Thorney 
village on farmland with access to the site from Wisbech Road.  
 
The Development Management Manager provided an overview of the application and 
highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update report.  
 
Mr Moore, Agent, addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted 
included: 

 Local enquires had been made including an exhibition.  

 Whilst detailed plans were not yet available local residents expressed 
encouragement for the scheme. 

 
The Principal Engineer (Highways) advised the Committee that the removal of the 
village speed limit was being considered to re-site it further away, to encourage 
drivers to slow down prior to approaching the junctions. 
 
The Committee expressed regret that good quality houses needed to be demolished 
in the name of progress, however, showed support for the scheme. The Committee 
considered that village children should be able to afford housing in the area they 
grew up in. 
 
A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation, subject to the conditions set out in the report. The motion 
was carried unanimously. 

 
RESOLVED: (unanimous) that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 

conditions set out in the report. 
 

Reasons for the decision: 

 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable 
having been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing 
against relevant policies of the development plan and specifically: 

7



 The majority of the site was allocated for housing and would provide housing 
to support the City Council's growth agenda. 

 The proposal would provide affordable homes as well as lifetime and 
wheelchair housing. 

 The development would not have any significant adverse impact upon 
highway safety and safe access from the adopted Highway can be provided. 

 The development could be accommodated within the site without any 
significant adverse impact upon the amenities of the neighbouring properties. 

 The development could be accommodated without any significant adverse 
impact upon existing landscaping or character and appearance of the open 
countryside. 

 The impact of the proposed development upon ecology of the site was 
considered to be acceptable. 

 The development would allow for the provision of Public Open Space. 

 The site could be adequately drained. 

 
The proposal was therefore in accordance with Policy CS1, CS2, CS8, CS10, CS11, 
CS13, CS14, CS16, CS17, CS19, CS21, CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) policies SA4 and SA5 of Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012), 
policies PP01, PP02, PP03, PP12, PP13, PP14, PP16, PP17 and PP19 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and Sections 4 and 8 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2012). 

 

5.3 16/00421/HHFUL - 276 Eastfield Road, Eastfield, Peterborough, PE1 4BE 
 

The site comprised of two storey semi-detached property of the inter war period on 
the west side on Eastfield Road. The application was for a two storey side extension 
and a single storey extension behind. 

 
The Principal Development Management Officer provided an overview of the 
application and highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update 
report.  

 
Councillor Peach addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 The property was 100 yards away from the Park Ward Conservation Policy 
and it was believed that consideration should be given to the impact on the 
area.  

 It was considered that the application represented a large percentage 
increase in the size of the property. 

 Councillor Peach citied a previous application at 270 Eastfield Road, a grade 
II listed Victorian villa, which was refused, and later approved only by 
retaining the frontage.  

 Attention was also brought to other applications within the vicinity which had 
been refused. 

 
Mr O’Brien addressed the Committee in objection to the application and responded to 
questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 Whilst he was the current owner and had no plans to remove the trees which 
form a natural boundary, it could not be assumed a future owner of the 
property would not remove them should he decide to sell.  

 The proposed development would include additional pruning to existing trees 
on both plots, some of which had already been carried out.  

8



 It was suggested that the whole of the site should be considered as a 
heritiage site, not just the building itself. 

 Mr O’Brien appealed to Members to support him in retaining his property in an 
appropriate setting and suggested the application could be modified. 

 
Phil Branston, Agent, addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted 
included: 

 There was a significant tree screen between the application site and the 
neighbouring property. 

 None of the proposed windows within the extension would overlook the 
neighbouring property.  

 It was noted that permission was already in place for a ground floor extension, 
the foundations for which would be non-intrusive on the trees. 

 
The Planning and Highways Lawyer advised the Committee that the whole site was 
listed up to the curtilage including boundary fencing and perimeter walls. 
 
The Committee discussed potential damage to tree roots from the proposed 
foundations, availability of light and shadowing, and privacy although there was 
general agreement that all views are subjective. 
 
A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation, subject to the conditions set out in the report. The motion 
was carried seven voting in favour and one voting against. 
 
RESOLVED: (seven voted for and one voted against) that planning permission is 
GRANTED subject to the conditions set out in the report. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 

 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable 
having been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing 
against relevant policies of the development plan and specifically: 

 the proposed two storey and single storey extensions would not result in an 
unacceptable impact upon the character, appearance or visual amenity of the 
surrounding area, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD (2012); 

 the proposal would preserve and not give rise to undue harm to the setting of 
the adjacent Grade II Listed Building, in accordance with Section 66(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Policy CS17 of 
the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), Policy PP17 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and paragraph 131 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012); 

 the proposed extensions would not result in an unacceptable impact to the 
amenities of neighbouring occupants, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

 adequate on-site parking provision would be retained and no undue harm 
would result to the safety of the public highway, in accordance with Policy 
CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and 
PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); and 

 the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact to landscape features 

9



of key amenity within the locality, in accordance with Policy PP16 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

 

5.4 16/00482/FUL - 1 Church Street, Peterborough, PE1 1XB 
 
The Committee was presented with a retrospective application for a 3.5m high gate 
between Pizza Hut and Barclays Bank on Cathedral Square with the gate being 
closed outside of business hours only.  
 
The Development Management Manager provided an overview of the application and 
highlighted a number of key issues within the report and update report.  

 
Mr Lambshead, Agent, and Mr Martin, Barclays Bank, addressed the Committee in 
support of the application and responded to questions from Members. In summary 
the key points highlighted included: 

 The problems caused with bank staff regularly having to arrange clean-up of 
the area which is inconvenient and potentially dangerous to staff, pedestrians 
and cyclists.  

 Measures had already been taken by Barclays to discourage anti-social 
behaviour including the installation of infra-red lights at the rear of the building 
to discourage drug users, a canopy at the rear of the building, additional 
lighting in the alleyway. 

 The walls had been repainted the several times. 
 It was felt that the last eighteen months had been horrendous for staff and 

public using this walkway and the parking area being subject to threatening 
behaviour, abusive language, food waste and rubbish from nearby food 
outlets which in turn leads to rat infestation, the establishment of a cardboard 
sleeping area, needles, knives and smashed alcohol bottles.  

 The worst aspect for bank staff and members of the public was arriving at 
work in the morning to find the area has been used as a public toilet and the 
sights and smells this brings. This misuse has also been observed during the 
day as pedestrians pass by.  

 Specialised cleaners were called upon regularly to keep the area clean 
including the removal of needles and faeces. The bank felt the installation of 
the gate was a last resort and were looking for a compromise. 

 
The Committee discussed a number of points including the time taken to walk the 
alternative route and flexibility of gate opening times. It was also suggested that the 
bank could better manage the walkway. Concern was expressed that the path would 
be closed on a Sunday and it was suggested that a third party could be involved 
when the bank is closed.  
 
It was considered by the Committee that the design of frontal appearance was 
requested to be in keeping with the Conservation Area and that the gate should be 
repositioning of further back, in line with the site boundary. 
 
Discussion took place around the opinion that public presence would discourage 
rough sleepers and members were advised that there are often rough sleepers in the 
town centre in the mornings as people walk past and this does not act as a deterrent.  
 
A number of Members questioned whether it would be more appropriate to refuse 
planning permission and allow Barclays to resubmit the application at a later date, or 
to grant the application, with delegation provided to officers to agree the conditions.  

 

10



A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, contrary 
to officer recommendation, subject to: 

 

 Hours for the gate to be open: 8:00am to 6:00pm, Monday to Saturday, and 
9:00am to 5:00pm on Sunday; 

 Delegated authority to the Corporate Director of Growth and Regeneration to 
agree relevant conditions, including: 

o The fencing off of the alleyway recess; 
o The design of the gate to be brought in line with the conservation area; 

and 
o The repositioning of the fence to sit further into the alleyway. 

 
The motion was carried six voting in favour, two voting against. 

 
RESOLVED: (six voted for and two voted against) that planning permission is 
GRANTED subject to: 

 

 Hours for the gate to be open: 8:00am to 6:00pm, Monday to Saturday, and 
9:00am to 5:00pm on Sunday; 

 Delegated authority to the Corporate Director of Growth and Regeneration to 
agree relevant conditions, including: 

o The fencing off of the alleyway recess; 
o The design of the gate to be brought in line with the conservation area; 

and 
o The repositioning of the fence to sit further into the alleyway. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 

It was considered that the application would assist in addressing the problems faced 
within the alley overnight and would discourage anti-social behaviour. The application 
would ensure that residents utilise a safer route overnight.  
 
In light of the alternative routes available throughout the city, it was not considered 
that closing off the alleyway would cause any significant inconvenience. It was 
considered that the closure would have no impact on cycle ways as the route was not 
suitable for cyclists due to the narrow width. 

 
6.  Planning Compliance Quarterly Report on Activity and Performance January to 

March 2016 
 

The Committee received a report which outlined the Planning Service’s planning 
compliance performance and activity which identified if there were any lessons to be 
learned from the actions taken. The aim was for the Committee to be kept informed 
of future decisions and potential to reduce costs. The Development Management 
Manager provided an overview of the report and highlighted a number of key issues. 

 
Two specific cases of particular note were: 

1. Court action for failure to comply with enforcement notice at a food store in  
Padholme Road which has subsequently been complied with. 

2. Prosecution case on the land to the south east of Nine Bridges, Glinton where 
the owner was found guilty and fined. 

 
The Committee discussed the level of fines awarded and were advised that although 
most cases were successful the fines were considered to be generally quite low and 

11



did therefore not act as a deterrent. 
 
The Planning and Highways Lawyer advised that there were strident sentencing 
guidelines which are binding and also fines are means assessed so other ways to 
promote the message need to be found. 
 
The Committee considered that the guidelines need to be updated and the brackets’ of 
fines need moving to community penalties and this idea should be pursued particularly if 
we have supporting evidence and the officer was asked to investigate this further. 
Praise was given for the standard of performance. 
 
RESOLVED: 
  
The Committee noted past performance and outcomes. 

 
 

Chairman 
1.30pm – 3.45pm 

12



13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



Planning and EP Committee 12 April 2016 at 3pm                                                               Item 1

Application Ref: 15/02209/FUL 

Proposal: Single storey extension to create 4 additional bedrooms with associated 
lounges, storage and meeting room, and two storey extension to create 
additional educational wing, music studio and storage

Site: 8 Lincoln Road, Glinton, Peterborough, PE6 7AW
Applicant: Mr Steve McFaden

Agent: Mr Jamie Alston
Hoopers Architects Ltd

Referred by: Glinton Parish Council
Reason: The extension would be outside the village settlement boundary
Site visit: 03.03.2016

Case officer: Mrs J MacLennan.  The report has been drafted by South Kesteven 
District Council for independent review of the proposal and conformity to 
planning policy

Telephone No. 01733 454438
E-Mail: janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and surroundings
The application site is approximately 1.1ha and located to the far south and within the village 
settlement boundary of Glinton.  The site contains a two storey building, which has been previously 
extended, which is used as a secure unit for young women.  The site is accessed via an independent 
free-standing access off Lincoln Road to the west of the site.  This access was approved in 2010 
(ref. 10/00071/FUL).  A former access off Welmore Road has now been closed with the opening of 
the new access. The site is enclosed by an extensive tree belt to the western and southern boundary. 
The character of the adjoining area to the north and east comprises residential properties and to the 
west and south open countryside.  The building is very effectively screened by a dense tree belt to 
the west and south of the site.  

Proposal
Planning permission is sought for the construction of the following extensions

a)  a Single storey extension to provide 4 additional bedrooms including 2 lounges to be located 
on the western side of the existing building attached to the gym.  The extension would have a 
footprint of approximately 6.2m in width x 33.2m in depth.  The unit would have a dual pitched 
roof with a maximum height of 6.3m and an eave height of 4.7m; and 

b)  Two storey extension to provide 2 classrooms on the ground floor and storage/education space 
at first floor.  This would be located at the east side of the existing building and would have a 
footprint of approximately 7.7m in width x 14.6m in depth.  The height of the extension would 
align with that of the existing building. 

The capacity of the secure unit would be increased from 16 residents to 20.

15



2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
P1053/81 Erection of 4 metre high security fencing Permitted 16/02/1982
94/P0914 Extension to provide 16 bed children’s 

secure unit with education and service 
facilities, including demolition of some 
existing buildings as amended by revised 
plans received 24.4.95, numbered: 94-
11398/DLP1/E, 11883AS0101, AK0063, 64, 
65, 66A, 67A, 69

Permitted 19/06/1995

07/00482/FUL Extension to fitness centre, extension to 
sleeping accommodation and new garage, 
extension to lift and entrance, demolition 
and rebuilding of classroom and 
administration block and alterations and 
extension to car park

Permitted 23/07/2007

07/01620/FUL Creation of temporary car park Permitted 26/11/2007
10/00071/FUL Construction of external drive to form 

vehicular access onto B1443 from Clare 
Lodge

Permitted 02/03/2010

10/00808/R3FUL Construction of two single storey lounge 
extensions and one two-storey teaching 
and office extension

Permitted 20/08/2010

10/00810/DISCHG Discharge of conditions C4 (parking) and 
C9 (vehicle cleaning) of planning 
permission 10/00071/FUL - Construction of 
external drive to form vehicular access on 
to B1443 from Clare Lodge

Determined 06/08/2010

12/01255/NONMAT Non-material amendment to planning 
permission 10/00808/R3FUL dated 
20/08/10 (Construction of two single storey 
lounge extensions and one two-storey 
teaching and office extension) - re-location 
of external doors to single storey lounges 
from side elevations to rear gable 
elevations

Determined 30/08/2012

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 8 - School Development 
Paragraph 72 emphasises that the Government attaches great importance to ensuring that a 
sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. 
Local planning authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting 
this requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education. They should give great 
weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools.

16



Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS01 - Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
The location/ scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Development 
in the countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met.

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents.

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012)

SA04 - Village Envelopes 
These are identified on the proposals map. Land outside of the village envelop is defined as open 
countryside.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Applications which accord with policies in the Local Plan and other Development Plan Documents 
will be approved unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Where there are no relevant 
policies, the Council will grant permission unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards.

PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

17



Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation 
on this document ran from 15 January to 25 February 2016. 

At this preliminary stage the polices cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current 
application. Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report.

Peterborough Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD

SPD Policy – Glinton

Glin 14: All new developments on the edge of the village should conserve or enhance the 
soft landscape edge by provision of appropriate tree and hedgerow planting. Hard 
edges, such as high fencing, walls or other similar style structures should be 
avoided.

4 Consultations/Representations

PCC Tree Officer - No objection - the arboricultural survey submitted appears to be accurate.  During 
a site visit it was noted that a row of conifers would require removal as they are too close to the 
existing boundary fence for reasons of security.   The loss of these trees is internal and is unlikely to 
be noticed from the outside of the site.  The groups of trees to the south (A001) is a mixture of 
predominately Poplar and Field Maple. Historically, a section of bund was partially removed for 
previous construction access. The bund was then replaced and replanted.  The majority of these 
trees have failed to grow significantly. This section of bund is planned to be removed again for access 
to the site. In principle, there is no objection with the creation of this access so long as the adjacent 
trees that are required to undertake this task are replaced.  A group of trees to the south will be 
removed completely. They are of reasonable quality but cannot be seen from outside the site. Their 
loss will have no impact on the amenity of the area. A more site specific description of the 
methodology for tree protection is required.  This can be secured by condition.

PCC Wildlife Officer– No objection – The officer is satisfied that none of the existing mature 
deciduous trees in the south-western corner of the site will be impacted on by the proposed scheme. 
However it is recommended that the proposed access routes and compound storage areas are 
carefully positioned to minimise the need to remove existing vegetation.  It is recommend that the 
western boundary is replanted and strengthened using a range of native tree and shrub species, the 
details of which may be provided via a suitably worded condition.  In the officer’s opinion the proposal 
would result in no net loss to biodiversity. 

Lead Local Drainage Authority– No objection - The applicant suggests using a soakaway to 
manage the surface water onsite.  These details would be required to be submitted and secured by 
condition.

Archaeological Officer– No objection - Within a 250m radius, investigations carried out to the west 
and south of the proposed development site have produced evidence for intense Roman occupation. 
Aerial photographs show remnants of medieval ridge and furrow associated with the open fields of 
the historic village of Glinton. The available evidence indicates that there is high potential for the 
existence of Roman remains associated with settlement and land management. Medieval ridge and 
furrow are also likely to be present. However, groundwork operations associated with the 
construction of the centre, including service trenches for the utilities and landscaping, are likely to 
have obliterated potential buried remains, thus reducing the archaeological potential of the site. On 
the basis of the available evidence, a programme of archaeological work would not be justified.

18



PCC Conservation Officer– No objection - The site is not located within the Glinton Conservation 
Area. It is not within close proximity to the conservation area or any designated or non-designated 
heritage assets and therefore the proposal is considered unlikely to result detriment to the character 
and appearance of it. The site is currently very well screened by way of a perimeter fence with 
adjacent earth bunds and planting. The single storey extension is adjacent to a taller gymnasium 
and the two storey extension is no taller than its attached buildings. With the benefit of a site visit to 
view the setting, it is not considered that the new structures would result in any significant impact on 
the character or appearance of the wider locality. The loss of some of the boundary planting could 
be mitigated by re-planting to aid screening of the site. The buildings have been designed to be 
constructed of matching scale and materials to those already in existence. From a heritage 
consideration the proposed works can be supported.

PCC Transport & Engineering Services – No objection - The addition of 4 bedrooms shall not 
result in a significant increase in traffic flows to and from the site and as there is adequate on-site 
parking and turning facilities the LHA raised no objections subject to conditions.  It was noted that 
for the proposed temporary access, no turning is provided, therefore any turning would have to be 
carried out within the private access road.

PCC Pollution Control Officer – No objection – The following comments have been made:

Noise – Music Room - The proposed Music Studio is approximately 75m from the nearest residential 
property on Ashburn Close, and approximately 60m to the nearest residential property on Welmore 
Road. If the practice of music was to take place in this premises with the window open at a volume 
usually played for the provision of dance then the estimated noise levels at the nearest residential 
property would be in the region of LAeq 45dB(t). Noise reports completed for other developments to 
the south-west of this development indicate that a daytime background noise level of LA90 42dB(t) 
can be expected.  Peterborough City Council generally prefer noise levels to be 10dB below the 
background noise levels. Although with good management excessive noise levels from the music 
room are unlikely the officer suggests the appending of a condition to ensure noise is controlled.  

Noise – Mechanical Plant – Concerns have been raised regarding noise from the chiller plant. This 
is not an issue Pollution Control are aware of, nor is it one that is covered in any detail in the planning 
submission. Nevertheless with the siting of new mechanical plant it may be necessary to consider a 
compliance condition to ensure sound levels are suitably controlled.  The officer suggests the 
appending of a condition to ensure noise from plant equipment is suitably controlled.

Light -  Pollution Control are not aware of any complaints relating to lighting at this development, and 
given the nature of its use it is unlikely that light nuisance would be an issue. However the Officer 
suggested that lighting should accord with The Institution of Lighting Engineers “Guidance Notes for 
the Reduction of Light Pollution (Revised)”. This Institution strongly recommends that planning 
authorities adopt obtrusive light limitations for exterior lighting installations.  The Officer suggests the 
appending of a compliance condition.

Construction Works - There is no specific legislative control for the hours of work on construction 
sites. There is a code of practice for control of noise from construction sites which advises that work 
should be programmed such that HGV’s do not come on site between 7pm and 7am. Although not 
directly relevant it gives a guide of likely acceptable hours for noisy activities. The Officer suggests 
the appending of a condition advising that construction traffic should not use the site entrance off 
Welmore Road and HGV’s should not come on site between 7pm and 7am.

Police Architectural Liaison Officer (PALO) – No objection - No comments to make on the 
application.

19



Sport England – No objection - The nature of this specific proposal is such that Sport England 
does not consider that this development would fall under any requirement to consult Sport England 
as a statutory (Statutory Instrument 2015/595) or non-statutory consultee (Planning Practice 
Guidance ‘Open Space, Sports and Recreation Facilities, Public Rights of Way and Local Green 
Space, Paragraph 003).

Glinton Parish Council– Objection – The Parish council were unanimous in their objections to this 
application on a number of grounds.  A substantial part of the proposed extension is outside the 
village envelope in contravention of planning policy CS1. The proposed extension could be 
accommodated elsewhere on the site within the Clare Lodge boundary.    The applicant was well 
aware that the proposal was outside the village envelope as they had previously consulted parish 
council on the plans and had been advised to adjust their plans. That advice had been ignored.    

Concern was expressed about the proposal to remove screening hedge to the western boundary of 
the site. This should be retained to help disguise the security fencing. Policy Glin 14 states that 
development on the edge of the village should conserve or enhance the soft landscape edge by 
provision of appropriate tree and hedgerow planting.    Councillors question the accuracy of the site 
boundary shown on their plans, particularly on the western boundary. Google Earth overlay clearly 
suggest that the site boundary shown on the plans is in the wrong position giving the impression that 
Clare Lodge site is larger than it actually is in reality. Therefore development, if permitted, would 
have a greater impact on neighbours' amenity than intimated by the plans. Parish council are of the 
opinion that the existing boundary should be confirmed by independent onsite measurements. 
Furthermore existing boundaries should remain unchanged.

Those Councillors present at a city council budget presentation had been informed that the City 
council budget strategy took into account additional revenue of £250k arising from the extension of 
Clare Lodge. Recognising that this increased the pressure on the City Council planning department 
to approve the application, parish council are of the opinion that this application should be subjected 
to independent scrutiny possibly by a planning department outside of Cambridgeshire.

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 17
Total number of responses: 2 (including Parish Council – comments above)
Total number of objections: 2
Total number in support: 0

 I represent local residents on a Communication Group with Clare Lodge. On several occasions 
concerns have been raised on the noise emitting from plant rooms on the site with no 
successful outcome.

 The site is a large educational/care facility on the edge of a residential development; therefore 
I assume there are some technical limits and restrictions. Please verify the status of this site 
in planning terms and assure me that all the necessary technical details have been applied 
and described in the application.  Officer response:  The proposed extension is considered to 
be relatively modest.  Sufficient information has been submitted to allow for full consideration 
of the proposal.

 Should there not be a full Design and Access statement or does the Planning Statement 
suffice? Officer response:  This is not a major development and therefore a Design and 
Access Statement is not required.

 Change of infrastructure and plant to support extra accommodation is a material factor within 
the profile of the application. Please advise how and where this will be described in the 
application.  Officer response:  These details shall be secured by condition.

 Please advise what is the normal population of the development and how it may increase in 
total. Officer response:  The number of residents would increase from 16 to 20

 I would like to remind you that the facility is in the outer zone of the PADHI restrictions of the 
gas compressor station at 1650 Lincoln Road Glinton, and I understand it counts as a level 4 
sensitivity development. Officer response:  The site lies outside the consultation zone                                                                               

20



 I also note there is a music room planned for the first floor, please describe the expected 
noise levels external to the building.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

a) Background
The application is subsequent to a pre-application enquiry to the Local Planning Authority for an 
identical scheme seeking an in principle view on the proposal.  It was officers’ opinion that the 
proposal, if submitted, could be supported in principle subject to the details of the scheme meeting 
the requirements of other planning policy and material planning considerations.

The Parish Council refer to the additional revenue of £250k arising from the extension of Clare Lodge 
and consider that this has put pressure on the planning department to approve the application.  The 
Parish Council are of the opinion that this application should be subjected to independent scrutiny 
possibly by a planning department outside of Cambridgeshire.

The proposal is for an extension to an existing secure unit and whilst recent changes, introduced via 
the Housing and Planning Act, have emphasised that the financial implications of development are 
material planning considerations this proposal has been assessed purely on its planning merits and 
in terms of its accordance with relevant national and local planning policy.    

For the Committee’s information, as requested by the Parish Council and in order to ensure the 
integrity of the planning process, the Council’s approach and assessment of the planning merits of 
this particular case has also been subject to appropriate independent scrutiny by South Kesteven 
District Council for independent review of the proposal and conformity to planning policy.

b) The Principle of Development
It is noted that a small section of the development would encroach outside of the current village 
settlement boundary.  The Officer is mindful that the Parish Council has raised objection to this 
encroachment stating that the proposal would be contrary to policy CS1 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD.  The extension would project approximately 13m beyond the current line of the 
built form which forms the village settlement boundary to the west edge of the site although it should 
be noted that all of the proposed extensions would still be contained within the physical boundaries 
and particularly the established landscaping framework and visual parameters of the application site. 

The Parish Council has suggested that the extension be positioned elsewhere within the site.  

It is considered, however, that the proposed development could not practically be positioned in any 
other location within the application site without inappropriately compromising on parking provision 
and outdoor amenity space.  Furthermore the proposed positioning of the extensions to the 
western/southern side of the site would effectively safeguard adjoining residential properties by 
ensuring that they would not have any impact on existing neighbouring properties to the north and 
east.

The site is an established secure unit with a number and variety of buildings on site. The proposed 
extensions are all considered to be within the boundary of the site. The extensions are also not 
considered to result in significant intensification of the approved use. The principle of the proposed 
extensions is therefore capable of being supported as they would not contravene the principles of 
policy CS1 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy Glin14 of the Village Design 
Statement.

21



c) Design and Visual Amenity
The site is situated some 170m from Lincoln Road to the west and 110m from the A15 to the east 
and is well screened by way of an earth bund and planting. The single storey extension is adjacent 
to a taller gymnasium and the proposed two storey extension would also be appropriately subsidiary 
as it would be no taller than its attached buildings.  It should be noted that the proposed two storey 
element was previously approved in 2010 however that permission was not implemented and it was 
not constructed.  Due to the extensive established planting the building is not directly visible from 
outside of the site and therefore it is considered that the extensions would not in any way be visually 
intrusive, intrude into open countryside nor have any notable impact on the character or appearance 
of the wider locality.

The buildings have been thoughtfully designed so as to be constructed of matching scale and 
materials to those already in existence. The single storey extensions will match in terms of height, 
scale, design and materials, the features of the existing single storey elements of the building.  The 
two storey extension abuts and existing two storey element of the building and would match the 
height, scale and design of the existing building.

It is therefore considered that the proposed extensions would respect the form and character of the 
existing building and would not be harmful to the visual amenity of the area.  Hence the proposal 
accords with policy PP2 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policy CS16 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy Glin14 of the Village Design Statement.

d) Neighbouring Amenity
The site has been occupied and in use as a secure unit for a number of years.  Therefore it has to 
be acknowledged that these limited proposed extensions and the relative related increase of only 4 
no. bedrooms would not either change the existing character or  the use of the site.  It is also 
important to note that the proposed extensions would be positioned on parts of the site furthest from 
the adjoining village of Glinton and well away from any of the neighbouring dwellings.

It is not therefore considered that the proposed extensions would result in significant increases in 
noise and disturbance to neighbouring occupiers. It is unlikely that the increase in the number of 
bedrooms would result in any material increase in the flow of traffic to and from the site and in any 
event it is considered that this would not impact on neighbours as the site now has its own  
independent dedicated access from Lincoln Road.  

A letter of representation has been received from a neighbouring occupier raising concerns about 
the noise implications resulting from plant and the proposed ‘Music Studio’  The applicant has 
responded to this concern by stating that the old chiller plant would now be removed and also that 
the external condenser units are to be relocated to within the existing plant room.  The applicant 
considers that this intended approach will help to eliminate any previous noise issues experienced 
by the neighbouring occupiers.

The proposed Music Studio element would be positioned 80m from the neighbouring properties in 
Ashburn Close and 50m from neighbouring properties in Welmore Road.  The two storey extension 
within which the Music Studio is proposed aligns with the existing building.  It is therefore not 
considered that noise emanating from this room/activity would be at a level that would significantly 
impact on the amenity of the occupiers of these dwellings.

Furthermore it should be noted that whilst the Council as the applicant could effectively manage the 
use of the premises the Local Planning Authority would not have any control over the reconfiguration 
of the internal areas.

Therefore having thoroughly considered the issues relating to neighbouring amenity it is contended 
that the proposal would not impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and accords with policy 
PP3 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and Policy CS16 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.

22



Conditions would be appended to the decision notice restricting the level of noise emitted from the 
music room at the site which should not exceed 32dB LAeq, 1 hour between 07:00hrs and 23:00hrs 
Monday to Friday and 24dB LAeq, 15 minutes at any other time; and a general noise condition for the 
whole site requiring the level of noise emitted from the site should not exceed 32 dB LAeq, 1 hour 
between 07:00hrs and 23:00hrs Monday to Friday and 24dB LAeq, 15 minutes at any other time in order 
to protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with policy CS16 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy PP3 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD.

e) Landscape Implications
The arboricultural report has been submitted in support of the application and the Tree Officer 
considers the submitted information to be acceptable.  The report outlines the partial removal of 
trees to the west of the site and a section to the south of the site.

The Tree Officer advises that the submitted supporting plan is misleading as it identifies a significant 
amount of trees, mainly Pine, to be removed on the western boundary.  However, this is not the 
case.  The Tree Officer has visited the site as the applicant considers that it will be necessary to 
remove a row conifers as they are too close to the existing boundary fence for reasons of security.    
The tree officer considers that the loss of these trees is internal and is unlikely to be noticed from the 
outside of the site.

The tree group to the south is a mixture of Poplar and Field Maple. Historically, a section of bund 
was partially removed for previous construction access. The bund was then replaced and replanted 
– the majority of these trees have failed to grow significantly. This section of bund is planned to be 
removed again for access to the site. There are no objections to the loss of these trees provided that 
they are replaced.

There are another group of Field Maple trees to the south of the site which are of reasonable quality 
and are to be removed, however, they cannot be seen from outside the site and their loss will have 
no impact on the wider amenity of the area.

Details of tree protection and replacement planting will be secured by condition.

It is not considered that the proposal would actually be contrary to policy Glin14 of the Peterborough 
Design in Selected Villages DPD as the existing tree belt would be enhanced.

It is not considered that the loss of trees would adversely impact on the visual amenity of the area 
and replacement tree planting would enhance the tree belt and the biodiversity within the site.  Hence 
the proposal accords with policy PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

f) Highway Implications
There are 50 parking spaces within the site and the site benefits by an independent access from 
Lincoln Road.  There are currently 103 employees and this would not change as a result of the 
development.  The Local Highways Authority (LHA) considers that the increase in the number of 
bedrooms would not result in a significant increase in traffic flow and there is adequate on-site 
parking provision.  

A temporary construction access would be formed to the south and would utilise a construction 
access point previously used for recent lounge extensions at the site. Construction traffic for the 
duration of the project will use the existing access with easy access to the A15. No construction 
traffic will use the former site access off Welmore Road.  Contractor parking and storage has yet to 
be finalised but it is proposed that contractors will park within the bounds of the site or adjacent to 
the Access Road. 

23



The LHA raises no objections to the proposal subject to conditions being appended to the decision 
notice regarding the retention of parking and the details of a construction management plan to be 
agreed.

The proposal would not unduly impact upon the adjacent highway and therefore accords with policies 
PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policy CS14 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.

6 Conclusions

In coming to a conclusion regarding the potential acceptability of these proposals it is important for 
the Committee to consider the essential planning balance in terms of both assessing and evaluating 
the exact nature of the proposals and, having regard to the applicable presumption in favour of 
acceptable sustainable development, determining what harm if any would actually be caused. 

In this instance whilst there would be a very limited element of conflict with Core Strategy Policy 
CS1, in terms of the potential impact of the location of part of the proposed extension, that impact 
has to be considered in light of the relative weight that needs to be attributed to other relevant policies 
and the nature and extent of any actual harm that might be caused by the proposed development. 
In this instance NPPF offers explicit direct support for proposals that help meet the educational needs 
of communities. As Members will be aware there is a clear acknowledged and increasing need for 
Local Authorities to provide such specialised accommodation and as such, in accordance with the 
express requirements of the relevant national planning policy, that factor should and needs to be 
given great weight in determining this application.  

Notwithstanding the weight that must be given to national policy in this instance it is also important 
to consider the nature of the localised impacts. In essence all of the relevant sections of this report 
have concluded that, due to the careful siting and thoughtful design of these proposals, there would 
not actually be any discernable material harm to either the visual or residential amenity of the area.

Therefore, subject to the imposition of the attached appropriate conditions, the proposal is 
considered to be acceptable in planning terms, having been assessed in the light of all material 
considerations, including weighing against relevant national policies and the policies of the 
development plan and specifically because:

- The proposal is for well thought out extensions to an existing building which would all lie within 
the established operational boundary to the site;

- the height, scale, proportions and design of the extensions will be in keeping with the existing 
building and will not result in any adverse impact on neighbouring amenity;

- due to the extensive tree belt to the site boundary the extensions will not result in any adverse 
impact on the visual amenity of the area; and

- the proposal will not result in any highway implications.

Hence it is considered that whilst there is some minor conflict with Policy CS1 on balance the 
proposal accords with policies PP1, PP2, PP3, PP12, PP13 and PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD, policies CS14, CS16 and CS22 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD and the NPPF.

24



7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions:

C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended).

C 2 The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the extensions 
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

C 3 No development shall take place on the site until a finalised arboricultural protection 
scheme has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
finalised arboricultural protection scheme shall include: 

1. A site meeting between the site agent/architect/builder, the developers chosen 
arboriculturist and the Local Planning Authority's Tree Officer which shall inform the;

2. Submission of a site specific Method Statement and/or Tree Protection Plan to 
BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to design demolition and construction - 
Recommendations methodology. The Method Statement/Tree Protection Plan shall 
identify (not necessarily exclusively) the following:

 Clear identification of all trees to be removed and those to be retained;
 Location and specification of protective tree measures in addition to appropriate 

ground protection within the Root Protection Areas of all retained trees within the 
site;

 Details of all Root Protection Area infringement during the construction and 
landscaping phases with details on how the impact will be minimised. This includes 
the location and specification of 'no dig' constructions (where applicable);  

 Details of facilitation pruning;
 Location for access, material storage, site office, mixing of cement, welfare facilities 

etc.;
 Specification of landscaping prescriptions (including fencing/walls and changes in 

soil level) within the Root Protection Area of retained trees;
 Details of signage to be erected within the tree protection areas

The approved scheme shall be implemented in full, strictly in accordance with the agreed 
details/plans and shall be retained as such for the lifetime of the demolition/construction of 
the development. 

Reason: In order to protect and safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with 
Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and PP16 of 
the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.  This is a pre-commencement condition as the tree 
protection measures shall need to be provided prior to any works commencing on site.

25



C 4 A replacement tree or trees of a size and species to be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority shall be planted in the first planting season (December to February 
inclusive for deciduous trees and October to March for evergreen trees) following removal of 
the tree(s) the subject of this application.  The western boundary shall be replanted and 
strengthened using a range of native tree and shrub species.

Reason: To ensure continuity of tree cover in the interest of visual amenity, in accordance 
with the Policy 39 Peterborough Tree and Woodlands Strategy 2012.

C 5 Any trees, shrubs or hedges forming part of the approved landscaping scheme (except 
those contained in enclosed rear gardens to individual dwellings) that die, are removed or 
become diseased within five years of the implementation of the landscaping scheme shall 
be replaced during the next available planting season by the developers, or their 
successors in title with an equivalent size, number and species to those being replaced.  
Any replacement trees, shrubs or hedgerows dying within five years of planting shall 
themselves be replaced with an equivalent size, number and species.

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and the enhancement 
of biodiversity in accordance with Policy CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

C 6 The parking spaces shown on drawing no.  3659/6/03 Rev A for vehicles to park and turn 
clear of the public highway shall be retained thereafter for no other purpose than the 
parking and turning of vehicles in connection with the use of the children's home.

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with policy PP13 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

C 7 Prior to the commencement of development details of the temporary facilities that shall be 
provided clear of the public highway for material storage and for the 
parking/turning/loading/unloading of all vehicles visiting the site during the period of 
construction shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with policy PP12 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.  This is a pre-commencement condition as 
the details will need to be agreed before any works commence on site.

C8 All construction vehicles shall enter and leave the site from Lincoln Road and no construction 
vehicles shall enter or leave the site from Welmore Road.  No HGV’s shall come on site 
between 7pm and 7am.

Reason:   In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and in accordance with 
policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy PP3 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

C9 Prior to the commencement of development details of the proposed surface water drainage 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:   In order to manage surface water run-off and in accordance with policy CS22 of 
the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. This is a pre-commencement condition 
because the details to be approved are required to be carried out at the on-set of any 
groundworks/building works.

26



C10 Prior to installation, the details and siting of any new plant equipment such as A/C units 
including noise data shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The equipment shall only be provided in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to protect and safeguard the amenity of the area, in accordance with Policy 
CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

C11 The level of noise emitted from the music room at the site should not exceed 32dB LAeq, 1 hour 
between 07:00hrs and 23:00hrs Monday to Friday and 24dB LAeq, 15 minutes at any other time.  
The noise levels should be determined at the nearest noise sensitive premises.  The 
measurements and assessment should be made according to BS:4142:2014.

Reason:  In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and in accordance with 
policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy PP3 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

C12 The rating level of noise emitted from the site should not exceed 32 dB LAeq, 1 hour between 
07:00hrs and 23:00hrs Monday to Friday and 24dB LAeq, 15 minutes at any other time.  The noise 
levels should be determined at the nearest noise sensitive premises.  The measurements 
and assessment should be made according to BS:4142:2014.

Reason:  In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and in accordance with 
policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy PP3 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

C13 No additional lighting shall be installed at the site without the prior approval of the Local 
Planning Authority.  The details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason:  In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and in accordance with 
policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy PP3 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

C14 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 

* 3659/6/T/04 rev A 
* 3659/6/02 rev A 
* 3659/6/03 rev A 
* 3659/6/04 rev A 
* 3659/6/B/02 rev A 
* 3659/6/T/02 Opt 2A 
* 3659/6/T/03 Opt 2A

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning. 

27



This page is intentionally left blank

28



29



This page is intentionally left blank

30



Planning and EP Committee 26 July 2016 at 3pm                                                    Item 2

Application Ref: 16/00829/FUL 

Proposal: Proposed construction of two detached dwellings - re-submission

Site: Land South Of Former Crown Public House, Lincoln Road, Glinton, 
Peterborough

Applicant: GKL (HIRE) LTD

Agent: John Dadge
Barker Storey Matthews

Referred by: Glinton Parish Council
Reason: The scale of the development would not be in keeping with the street 

scene and adjacent development
Site visit: 12.05.2016

Case officer: Mrs J MacLennan
Telephone No. 01733 454438
E-Mail: janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and Surroundings:
The application site is approximately 0.16 ha and is located on the eastern side of Lincoln Road, 
Glinton and contains a triangular piece of land which has a maximum depth of 42m and a road 
frontage of 75m.   The site is close to the southern entrance to the village and is in part,  the car 
park to the former public  house;  the  Crown  Inn.   Further  to  the  south  of  the  site  the  land  
narrows  and  contains  an overgrown garden area.  The former public house is now occupied by 
‘Happy Faces’ pre-school facility with residential accommodation at first floor. The site is bounded 
by the playing fields to Peakirk-cum-Glinton School to the east, the former public house to the 
north and a dwelling to the south.  On the western side of Lincoln Road directly opposite the site 
are bungalows however the surrounding character is varied.  The site is within the village 
settlement boundary and abuts the Glinton Conservation Area to the east and south.

Proposal:
The application seeks approval for two detached 5-bed dwellings with accommodation within the 
roof space.  The dwellings would front Lincoln Road and have a ‘T-shape’ form and a ridge height 
of 9m (5.4m at eaves).  A block of two double garages are proposed within the site at the rear with 
a ridge height of 4.7m.  Each garage would have 2 no parking spaces to the front.  A new vehicular 
access is proposed which would be shared with the neighbouring ‘Happy Faces’ site.  The existing 
parking arrangements for Happy Faces would be reconfigured as part of this proposal.

31



2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
15/00119/FUL Proposed construction of two detached 

dwellings
Refused 26/03/2015

10/00309/FUL Demolition of former public house and erection 
of two 6 bedroom 2½ storey detached houses, a 
pair of 4 bedroom semi-detached dwellings, six 
2 storey self contained apartments (2 x 3 
bedroom and 4 x 2 bedroom), associated car 
parking, garages and communal private amenity 
space

Permitted 24/05/2010

09/00059/FUL Demolition of former public house and 
construction of 6 x two and a half storey, 4-bed 
semi-detached dwellings with garages; 6 x two 
storey, self-contained apartments (two 3 bed 
and four 2 bed), associated car parking and 
communal private amenity space

Permitted 15/02/2010

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions. 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the Conservation Area or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 7 - Good Design 
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; 
optimise the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities 
and transport networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate 
innovation; create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of 
good architecture and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for 
development of poor design.

Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets 
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness.  When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given 
to the asset’s conservation.  

Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred.

32



Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS02 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development 
Provision will be made for an additional 25 500 dwellings from April 2009 to March 2026 in 
strategic areas/allocations.

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012)

SA04 - Village Envelopes 
These are identified on the proposals map. Land outside of the village envelop is defined as open 
countryside.

SA06 - Limited Growth Villages 
Identifies the sites within the Limited Growth Villages which are allocated primarily for residential 
use.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Applications which accord with policies in the Local Plan and other Development Plan Documents 
will be approved unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Where there are no relevant 
policies, the Council will grant permission unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP04 - Amenity Provision in New Residential Development 
Proposals for new residential development should be designed and located to ensure that they 
provide for the needs of the future residents.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards.

33



PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

Peterborough City Centre DPD (2014)

CS01 - Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
The location/ scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Development 
in the countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met.

Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation 
on this document runs from 15 January to 25 February 2016. 

At this preliminary stage the polices cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current 
application. Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report.

Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD (2011)

SPD Policy – Glinton

Design Guidelines outside the conservation area:

Glin 12 New buildings in Glinton are likely to be sited on infill plots or small developments. The 
design of new buildings should be sympathetic to neighbouring buildings, and in keeping with the 
village environment, and take into consideration the views into the village, particularly the spire and 
church of St Benedict’s, from both roads and public footpaths.
  
Glin 14 All new developments on the edge of the village should conserve or enhance the soft 
landscape edge by provision of appropriate tree and hedgerow planting. Hard edges, such as high 
fencing, walls or other similar style structures should be avoided.

4 Consultations/Representations

Glinton Parish Council - Objection - The buildings are too tall over 9m high and are opposite 
bungalows and adjacent to the two storey former public house.  The dwellings are not in keeping 
with the street scene and, as in the previous submission, are again far too imposing a view on 
entering the village from the south. Parish Council were unanimously of the view that any 
development of this site should be in keeping with the adjacent former Crown PH and not exceed 
two storeys.  Request referral to planning committee if officers are minded to approve.

PCC Transport & Engineering Services -  No objection – there were initially concerns regarding 
the alignment of the new access.  The Local Highways Authority requested a swept path analysis 
showing that a large vehicle could enter the site and turn leaving the site in forward gear and 
demonstrating the access could be used by vehicles entering and leaving the site simultaneously.  
The applicant has submitted a revised site plan showing the accessibility from Lincoln Road and 
through TRACK plots they have demonstrated that vehicles can enter and exit the junction at the 
same time.

34



PCC Conservation Officer – No objection – A number of proposals have been approved on the 
site and the proposal follows on from a former application which was refused (15/00119/FUL).  
Advice was provided regarding the form and design that the dwellings should take and the Officer 
considers that the proposal has taken on board the advice provided.   Some changes were sought 
by the Conservation Officer and amended plans have been received as follows.  Rooflights to 
Lincoln Road are omitted.  The building heights are 9m to ridge and 5.4m to eaves. (By 
comparison the scheme approved under ref: 10/00309/FUL had 9m ridge heights and 5.4m eaves 
for the 3x semi-detached buildings and 8.5m ridge of the cross gable (11.3m length) of the building 
to the south with same 45 degree pitch).  Projecting eaves are now omitted for favour plain eaves 
junction.  Plinth and lintels added (stone lintels can be chamfered by condition). Separation 
distance between properties increased from 2m to 3m.  Side extension to plot 2 is reduced in scale 
- 3.8m (4.2m) length x 5.8m (6.8m) width x 5.5m (6.0m) height; two light window (from 3 light) and 
set-back distance from building frontage increased 200mm to 700mm.  Ridge height of the garages 
reduced to 4.7m from 5.8m. 

From a heritage consideration the proposal can be supported. 

Welland & Deeping Internal Drainage Board - A sustainable urban drainage system should be 
considered for surface water run off.  Any surface water should be attenuated to greenfield rates.  
The Board's written consent would be required for any water to discharge into its system.

PCC Tree Officer – No objection - Overall the information provided is sufficient and given suitably 
worded conditions to secure the submitted documents I have no objection to the proposal although 
I note there are likely to be liveability issues due to shading, leave litter etc. which should not be 
underestimated for any prospective resident of plot 2.  Request that the tree work schedule is 
updated and clarified so that a definitive tree works list is produced.  Recommend conditions re 
tree protection and landscaping.

Archaeological Officer – No objection - The proposed development site is located within the 
historic village of Glinton, between the medieval church of St Benedict to the north-east and the 
former Rectory to the south-east.  Cartographic evidence suggests that the post-medieval Crown 
Inn public house was situated within the proposed development site, i.e. in the car park to the later 
1960s Crown public house (currently Happy Faces children's nursery / play centre) where the 
proposed development site is currently located.  Finds of Roman date have been found in the 
general area.

Although some degree of truncation is expected to have occurred as the result of the construction 
and demolition of the post-medieval public house, medieval (and earlier remains) may survive in 
undisturbed pockets of land.

Given the known historic and archaeological background to the site, I would recommend that a 
programme of archaeological evaluation by trial trenching is secured by condition. 

Building Control Manager – Building regulations approval required.

PCC Wildlife Officer – No objection – As the proposal involves the removal of vegetation which 
may support nesting birds, it is recommended that an informative is appended to the decision to 
ensure these are not removed during the nesting season.  In addition, to mitigate for the loss of 
potential nesting habitat as well as to enhance the development for biodiversity, it is requested that 
a range of nesting boxes are installed that cater for a number of different species.  The mature 
hedgerow containing numerous trees along the eastern boundary of the site should be retained. 
Native tree and shrub species should be including in any additional planting.

35



Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 11
Total number of responses: 4
Total number of objections: 4
Total number in support: 0

Two neighbour consultations have been undertaken as amended plans have been received.  
Responses to both are set out below. 

 The plans are incorrect and do not show Happy Faces outdoor area – the parking plan is 
unfeasible in the current form.  

 The parking for Happy Faces cannot be jeopardised – a minimum of 18 spaces is required.  
The garages location shown will only cause issues with parking for the proposed properties 
and Happy Faces. 

 The houses would be far better served with a central drive way and garages to the rear and 
not shared with Happy faces.

 The new revised entrance also needs to be thought out carefully in terms of timings with 
Happy Faces closures and the customers of Happy Faces.

 The 3 storey, 9m high dwellings are excessive in scale for the location 
 The dwellings would dominate the street scene and borders to the conservation area and 

most importantly the entrance to Glinton village. 
 The dwellings are not in keeping with the bungalows opposite.
 There would be overlooking to the bungalows opposite, our own property and number 3 

school lane at the rear, especially with the potential of a future balcony on the flat roof 
lantern roof. The roof should be revised to a standard pitched roof with roof windows or the 
permitted development rights be removed. 

 The large glazed sun room on south elevation would cause reflection from the sun resulting 
in a safety issue for drivers

 Our property is south facing with most of our windows facing the proposal which can be 
seen through all our 11 south facing windows. 

 Maintaining the character on the border of the conservation area carries greater weight than 
the need for the proposed to be 3 stories.

 The garages should be reduced to single garages to suit that available land.
 The proposed changes do not address our reasons for objecting to the application
 The positioning of the houses and lack of screening would spoil the look of Lincoln Road 

where all houses and bungalows are set back from the road and screened
 The overall effect will be to spoil the "Village" look of the entrance to Glinton from the south. 
 No effort has been made to reduce the height or scale of the dwellings in the revised 

scheme therefore the visual impact on the overall street scene still remains overbearing. 
 The developers are trying to squeeze too much into one property. 
 There are no other buildings over 9m high on either side of the road. 
 Both plots are also out of character with the general street scene which consist mainly of 

large front gardens, low eaves lines and set back a good distance from the road. 
 They are also well forward of the existing build line on that side of Lincoln Road. 

Consideration also has not been made to the local housing plan and amenity which we feel 
will be contravened. 

 The existing housing adjacent on the western side of Lincoln road are bungalows and early 
1900’s two storey dwellings none of which are the height of the proposed two dwellings or 
as close to the road as the proposed. 

 The flat roof with lantern could at some point have a balcony added, which again would 
present all manner of overlooking issues to the school, Happy Faces and No. 16.  

 We consider as Plot 1 is within approximately 30m of Happy Faces nursery and that any 
resident of that plot should be DBS checked due to its overlooking nature on the external 

36



child’s play area from the first/second floor windows. 
 The overlooking nature of those first floor windows and their proximity to the nursery could 

affect our business or cause some unease with parents, particularly if an incident were to 
occur or concerned parents were to discuss them. 

 The proposal would overlook neighbouring properties and the school grounds.
 Whilst the proposed site plan has been altered to depict what is currently at the site we feel 

that if the shared access is the only option, then additional parking for the two dwellings or 
shared parking would be an great asset. This additional parking would be between the 
garages and the school boundary. 

 The preferred configuration from our point of view would be a shared driveway serving both 
dwellings between the two properties further to the south off Lincoln Road, thus creating a 
single entry/exit for Happy Faces. This would then totally elevate any further vehicular 
congestion on entry and exit. 

 The proposed splay shown on the new entrance could also reduce our current parking 
further. This is not acceptable as we can have up to 24 vehicles access Happy Faces as 
any one time. We are proposing overflow car parking to the front of Happy Faces.  

 We also require further details of the proposed entrance and what form it will take. We 
would also like a planning condition inserted whereby the new entrance (once deemed 
suitable) was completed prior to any building or ground works commencing on the main site 
so minimal disturbance to the business/residential access is caused. Once this is 
completed the proposed construction site could then be securely fenced off.

 For your information refuse is collected on the street, the refuse vehicle does not enter the 
property.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

a) Background
The site has been the subject of much development interest over the past few years.  Planning 
permission was granted under ref: 09/00059/FUL for demolition of the former public house and 
construction of 6x 2½ storey 4-bed semi-detached dwellings and 6x two storey, self-contained 
apartments both with car parking and private amenity space.  A new application in 2010 under ref: 
10/00309/FUL approved broadly the same scheme and substituted 2 x semi-detached dwellings 
for 2 x 6 bedroom detached houses.  

The existing public house was subsequently converted to part use as a pre-school facility with first 
floor residential accommodation (ref. 10/00880/FUL).  

In 2015 a scheme to construct two detached dwellings with garages to the land to the south of the 
access to the former car park of the public house was refused under ref: 15/00119/FUL. The 
former scheme was refused due to the style, scale and plan form and the site position at the 
entrance to the village and subsequent impact on the character and appearance of the 
conservation area.  The scheme proposed one dwelling fronting Lincoln Road and a second 
dwelling within the site opposite the Happy Faces pre-school facility.  A garage block was also 
proposed between the two dwellings. Furthermore, the layout of the plots were at a 90 degree 
angle to one another which would have resulted in overlooking and an overbearing impact on the 
occupiers of one of the dwellings.  The proposal would also have had insufficient parking for the 
combined residential/pre-school establishment. 

The application is a re-submission.  The proposal has attempted to address the reasons for the 
refusal of the former scheme.   The applicant has met with the Planning Officer and the Local 
Highways Officer to examine alternative access options to provide independent access for the two 
dwellings from the neighbouring Happy Faces nursery.  However, there are a number of 
constraints along the site frontage including the positioning of major telecoms infrastructure and 
the presence of traffic calming measures immediately in front of the site.  In addition the provision 
of a garage to the south of the site would not be supported.

37



b) The Principle of development

The site lies within the village settlement boundary of Glinton which is designated as a Limited 
Growth Settlement within  the  Adopted  Peterborough  Core  Strategy.   The site (including the 
former Public House) is also  allocated  for  residential development (SA6.2) for an indicative 12 no 
dwellings within the Site Allocations DPD.  There have been two former approvals for residential 
development on the site and thus the principle of residential development is supported and 
established.

It is also considered that the development of the site for housing would help meet the housing 
needs of the village and area more widely.

c) Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area

The site occupies a prominent position on arrival in the village from the south. It is therefore very 
important that the form, scale and appearance of development is correct for the gateway site. 

The Glinton Conservation area covers the approach to the village from the south, along the eastern 
side of the road and then the land to the east of the site.  There are pleasant long views of the 
entrance to the village from the south. This is framed by the heavy landscape corridor of mature 
hedge and tree planting to field edge and provided by gardens to the east side of the road. The site 
becomes more prominent moving north through this landscape enclosure. To the north east of the 
site are also pleasant glimpses and views of the tall church spire. New buildings have the potential 
to have a significant visual impact in the street scene and the character and appearance of this 
part of the conservation area.

The applicant was advised that a better design approach would be to develop two buildings to the 
frontage with garages set to the rear. This form of layout would provide a better street scene and 
follow the more traditional ‘T’ or ‘L’ shape plan form with a more ordered elevation to Lincoln Road. 
The scheme as proposed positions the two dwellings parallel to Lincoln Road and this is welcomed 
and is considered to be correct for the street scene with car parking to the rear.  The proposal as 
now framed results in a southern building that steps up from single storey to two storey with 
accommodation in the roof space and retains the green wedge, garden, to the south of the site.   
The footprint of the dwellings has also changed from the former scheme.

The building style and plan form are simpler and broadly respectful of the context of the site and 
general building character of Glinton.  

Following advice from the Conservation Officer the scheme has been amended.  The revisions 
include the removal of rooflights from the front elevation facing Lincoln Road.  Plain eaves are 
provided.  A plinth has been added and lintels to the windows.  The separation distance between 
the properties has been increased to 3m.  The single storey side extension to plot 2 has been 
reduced in size.  Side extension to plot 2 is reduced in scale - 3.8m (4.2m) length x 5.8m (6.8m) 
width x 5.5m (6.0m) height; two light window (from 3 light) and set-back distance from building 
frontage increased 200mm to 700mm. The height of the garages has been reduced.  

In addition, the metal field railings along the internal access road to the north of plot 1 have been 
extended through to the garage block.  It is also intended to include the Beech hedge along this 
section of fencing as part of the landscaping scheme.

The applicant has advised that materials would be chosen to reflect the existing bricks, stone 
dressings and roof tiles of other properties in this section of the village.   It is however, considered 
that locally sourced limestone and replica Collyweston slate roof are appropriate building materials. 
These can be secured by condition.

The building heights are 9m to ridge and 5.4m to eaves. (By comparison the scheme approved 
under ref: 10/00309/FUL had 9m ridge heights and 5.4m eaves for the 3x semi-detached buildings 

38



and 8.5m ridge of the cross gable (11.3m length) of the building to the south with same 45 degree 
pitch.

It is not considered that the proposal would be harmful to the adjacent Conservation Area and the 
Conservation Officer raises no objections to the proposal.

From a heritage consideration with the amendments advised the proposal can be supported. It is 
considered that the work will preserve the character and appearance of this part of the Glinton 
Conservation Area in accordance with Section 72(1), of the Town and Country Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) and is in accordance with 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and the 
National Planning Policy Framework (Heritage considerations) 

d) Design, Visual Amenity and Position on Site

The dwellings would be higher than the adjacent former public house however the principle of 
higher buildings has previously been accepted under a former approved scheme.  This has to be a 
material consideration in the determination of the current application.  The buildings within the 
immediate vicinity of the site are of varied heights, massing and styles with bungalows directly 
opposite, a large dwelling to the south (14 Lincoln Road) and opposite at Rectory Gardens.  Given 
the mix of building heights the proposed dwellings at 9m would not look out of place or be unduly 
dominant.  

It has been noted that the character of the area is predominantly formed by dwellings positioned 
back from the footpath, however in this case due to the constraints with the site’s narrow triangular 
shape it would not be possible to position the dwellings further within the site.

It is considered that the site is not duly prominent on approach to the village from the south due to 
the dense trees.  The bungalows on the opposite side of Lincoln Road are not visible on approach 
to village and therefore do not define the village character at this entrance.

As stated above the scheme now proposed is a significant improvement on the former refused 
scheme – no blank gable at the entrance to the village and a single storey glazed element which 
provides a step up to the two storey building.

The scheme has now been amended removing the addition of rooflights to the front roof slopes 
which results in the dwellings being read as two storey with no accommodation in the roof.

It is considered that the proposal would make effective and efficient use of a brownfield site which 
is currently enclosed by hoardings and detracting from the character and appearance of the 
southern gateway to the village.  The scheme would provide enhancements to the site with the 
provision of a metal fence to the front with hedge behind, a development which would respect the 
character of the village in terms of design and materials which would ultimately benefit the visual 
amenity of the former Crown Inn particularly with the removal of the large commercial access off 
Lincoln Road. 

It is considered that the proposed dwellings would respect the immediate building styles within the 
immediate context and therefore accords with policy PP2 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD and policies CS16 and CS17 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD, the 
National Planning Policy Framework and policies Glin 12 and 14 of the Design and Development in 
Selected Villages SPD (2011).

e) Neighbouring Amenity

The dwellings would be positioned at an adequate separation distance to existing neighbouring 
dwellings. 

39



Happy Faces (former Crown Inn Public House)
There would be separation distance of 22m from plot 1 to the pre-school facility (Happy Faces).  
There would be no first floor windows within the side elevation (north) of plot 1 and therefore there 
would be no overlooking.  It is also considered that given the separation distance between these 
properties there would be no overshadowing or loss of sun and day light.

It has been stated that there are 11 windows within the pre-school facility building which overlook 
the site, however the position of the dwellings would be forward of this property and due to the 
separation distance the outlook for the occupiers would not be compromised.

Concern has also been raised regarding the positioning of the dwellings adjacent to the pre-school 
facility.  It has been proposed that the occupiers of plot 1 should be ‘DBS’ checked due the 
potential for overlooking from first floor windows to the children’s outdoor play area.  The owners of 
the facility are concerned that this could affect the business or cause some unease with parents.  
Concern has also been raised regarding the overlooking to the school grounds.

Due to the orientation of the dwellings there would not be a direct view of the children’s play area 
from first and second floor windows of the dwellings.  This relationship with residential to children’s 
play areas is not unusual and it is not considered that this is a reason for refusal of the application.

9-11 Lincoln Road (opposite the site)
It has been suggested that there would be overlooking to the bungalows on the western side of 
Lincoln Road however the separation distance to these dwellings would be at least 26m which is 
acceptable, to prevent overlooking.  The application could not reasonably be resisted on this basis.

3 School Lane
There would be oblique views of this property which is positioned over 25m from the site boundary 
to the north east of the site.  There would be no unacceptable adverse impact on the amenity of 
the occupiers of this property.

It has been suggested that the single storey element to the rear of the dwellings with roof lantern 
could become a first floor balcony with the potential for direct overlooking to neighbouring 
properties.  The provision of a balcony would require the benefit of planning permission.

School playing fields
The dwellings would be set back from the shared boundary to the east in the main part by at least 
16m; as the site narrows to the south the distance between the first floor element of plot 2 reduces 
to approximately 5m.  However the boundary to the east contains a line of mature trees which 
would prevent substantial overlooking.  The part of the school grounds is at the furthest point from 
the school and as mentioned above the relationship of dwellings with school playing fields is not so 
unusual.

The dwellings would be positioned at an acceptable distance to neighbouring occupiers to avoid 
any 
adverse impact on neighbouring amenity.   Hence the proposal accords with policy PP3 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD.

f) Residential Amenity
The dwellings would be afforded large enclosed private gardens in excess of 100m2.  Each of the 
dwellings would have a double garage with two parking spaces to the front.   Refuse storage would 
be provided.  Each room would be served with natural light.  It is considered that the proposal 
would provide a satisfactory level of amenity of the future occupiers and therefore the proposal 
accords with policy PP4 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

g)  Highway Implications
The existing access is situated approximately mid way along the former Crown frontage and 

40



serves the existing building and car parking for approximately 50 vehicles. Happy Faces have 
temporary use of part of the car park, however the planning approval for Happy Faces requires the 
provision of 19 no spaces in accordance with the parking standards under policy PP13 of the 
Planning Policies DPD.  This proposed layout provides for 17 no spaces to serve the pre-school 
use and additional overflow parking to the front of the building is indicated on the drawing.  It is 
considered that there is adequate provision of car parking to serve the needs of this use as well as 
the proposed dwellings.

A newly created access would be provided approximately 6m north of the existing access (this was 
approved under former scheme) and would be a shared access with the pre-school facility.

2 car parking spaces plus double garages (including cycle parking) are provided for each dwelling 
which accords with the parking standards under policy PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD.

With the scheme as initially submitted the Local Highways Authority were concerned regarding the 
lack of provision within the site for the turning of larger vehicles for example refuse collection 
vehicles.  A tracking plan has now been provided which demonstrates that a vehicle would be able 
to turn and leave the site in forward gear.

It is considered that it would be unlikely for a refuse vehicle to enter the site and refuse bins would 
be collected on street which is the case for other properties along Lincoln Road.  It is 
acknowledged that this would hold up traffic for a short period however, this is considered to be 
reasonable and is the case for many collections across the city.

It is also considered that the layout of the parking for the proposal dwellings and for the pre-school 
facility would be sufficient to allow appropriate space for the parking and turning for the associated 
uses.

It has been raised that an independent access should be provided for the dwellings, however as 
mentioned above there are constraints to the site including the traffic calming  which prevents any 
additional accesses into the site.

Appropriate visibility splays for vehicles and pedestrians would be available and these details 
would be secured by condition.

Concern has been raised regarding the glare that may result from the glazing with in the single 
storey element of the southern plot (plot 2) and the implications for drivers of vehicles entering the 
village from the south.  This element is single storey and it is not considered that this would be 
detrimental to highway safety.

 The parking for Happy Faces cannot be jeopardised – a minimum of 18 spaces is required.  
Officer response:  The plans now show adequate parking

 The garages location shown will only cause issues with parking for the proposed properties 
and Happy Faces. 

It is considered that the proposal would not result in any adverse highway implications and accords 
with policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policy CS14 
of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

h)  Landscape Implications
An arboricultural assessment has been submitted in support of the application.  There are no 
substantial trees within the site. However there is treed hedgerow adjacent to the eastern 
boundary, which provides a ‘soft’ backcloth to the site.  The trees along this boundary range from 
mature Ash and Bullace to early mature Oak.  Some of these trees are in third party ownership 
offsite. The report states that Ash NT2 and NT3 will have small infringement of their root protection 
areas (2% and 9% respectively). This infringement isn’t considered significant and is acceptable. 

41



The pruning outlined in the arboricultural report – specifically the lateral crown reduction by 4m of 
Ash NT3 is not necessary with the removal of the Bullace which have limited longevity. A targeted 
removal of lower branches would suffice and is a sustainable long term solution.  A Lleylandi 
hedge is to be removed from the eastern boundary. 

The proximity of the dwelling to NT2 and NT3 is very close but may be feasible due to the 
branching architecture of the tree following sympathetic lower crown pruning. However, there is the 
potential for liveability issues due to shading, leaves, litter etc. 

Planning policy encourages the retention of significant trees on development sites.  There are no 
significant or trees subject of a Tree Protection Order (TPO) on the site. However those which do 
exist to the rear boundary, part on and part outside the site, in any event, would be retained as part 
of the proposal.  The existing impermeable hard surfaced car park extends close to the trees.  The 
proposal would result in the removal of a significant area of hard surfacing that currently 
encroaches into the RPA.   The removal of the hardstanding will require careful consideration.   

Other  than  the  potential  shading  issues  the  Tree  Officer  raises  no  objections  to  the  
application subject to appending relevant conditions. The  proposal  has  assessed  the  
landscaping  implications  of  the  development  and  the  proposal therefore accords with policy 
PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

i) Ecology
An informative would be appended to the decision to ensure that no vegetation is removed during 
the nesting season. The Wildlife Officer has recommended the provision of nesting boxes for 
different species such as House Sparrow, Starling and Swift. The details would be secured by 
condition. Subject these provisions and appropriate landscaping the proposal would not result in a 
net loss of biodiversity. The proposal therefore accords with policy PP16 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

j) Archaeology
The proposed development site is located within the historic village of Glinton, between the 
medieval church of St Benedict to the north-east and the former Rectory to the south-east.  
Cartographic evidence suggests that the post-medieval Crown Inn public house was situated within 
the proposed development site, i.e. in the car park to the later 1960s Crown public house (currently 
Happy Faces children’s nursery / play centre) where the proposed development site is currently 
located.  Finds of Roman date have been found in the general area.  Although some degree of 
truncation is expected to have occurred as the result of the construction and demolition of the post-
medieval public house, medieval (and earlier remains) may survive in undisturbed pockets of land.

Given the known historic and archaeological background to the site the Archaeological Officer 
recommends that a programme of archaeological evaluation by trial trenching is secured by 
condition. 

6 Conclusions

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically:

 The site lies within the village settlement boundary of Glinton, a number of planning 
approvals have been granted for residential development and part of the site is allocated for 
housing development;

 The proposed dwellings would preserve the character and appearance of the conservation 
area in this part of the Glinton;

 The proposal would not detract from the character and appearance of the immediate 
context;

42



 the development would not have any significant adverse impact upon highway safety and
safe access from the adopted Highway can be provided;

 The development can be accommodated within the site without any significant adverse 
impact upon the amenities of the existing neighbouring occupiers; and it can also provide 
sufficient amenity for the future occupiers; and

 The development can be accommodated without any significant adverse impact upon 
existing landscaping and would enhance the biodiversity of the site.

The proposal is therefore in accordance with Policy CS1, CS2, CS14, CS16, CS17, and 
CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) policies SA4 and SA6 of 
Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012), policies PP01, PP02, PP03, PP4, PP12, PP13 
and PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012), Sections 4 and 8 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012 and Section 72 of the T&C Planning (Listed 
Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions:

C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended).

 
C 2 No development other than groundworks and foundations shall take place until the 

following have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority

 samples of the materials to be used in the external elevations of the dwellings
 details of windows and doors
 details of garage doors
 Plinth and lintels
 guttering and downpipes
 external services
The details submitted for approval shall include the name of the manufacturer, the product 
type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number. The development shall not be carried 
out except in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 
C 3 No demolition/development shall take place/commence until a programme of 

archaeological work including a Written Scheme of Investigation has been submitted to, 
and approved by, the local planning authority in writing.  No demolition/development shall 
take place unless in complete accordance with the approved scheme.  The approved 
scheme shall be implemented in full including any post development requirements e.g. 
archiving and submission of final reports.

Reason: To secure the obligation on the planning applicant or developer to mitigate the 
impact of their scheme on the historic environment when preservation in situ is not 
possible, in accordance with paragraphs 128 and 141 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  This is a pre-commencement 

43



condition because archaeological investigations will be required to be carried out before 
development begins.

 
C 4 No development shall take place on the site until an arboricultural protection scheme has 

been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The arboricultural 
protection scheme shall include: 
1. A site meeting between the site agent/architect/builder, the developers chosen 

arboriculturist and the Local Planning Authority's Tree Officer which shall inform the;
2. Submission of additional information identifying (not  necessarily exclusively) the 

following:
 a definitive tree works schedule in line with the Arboricultural Report produced 

by Andrew Belson (dated 11.04.16).
 finalised details and construction methodology of the 'no dig' parking bays 

including wearing surface, type of Cellweb and proposed levels. 

The approved scheme shall be implemented in full, strictly in accordance with the agreed 
details/plans requested above and in addition to the Arboricultural Report and associated 
plans produced by Andrew Belson (dated 11.04.16), for the lifetime of the demolition, 
construction and landscaping phases of the development. 

Reason: In order to protect and safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with 
Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and PP16 of 
the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  This is a pre-commencement condition as 
the details will need to be agreed before any works start on site.

 
C 5 A scheme for the hard and soft landscaping of the site shall be submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved hard landscaping scheme shall be 
shall be carried out prior to the occupation of the dwellings and the approved soft 
landscaping scheme shall be provided no later than the first planting season following the 
occupation of any building or the completion of development, whichever is the earlier.

The scheme shall include the following details
 Proposed finished ground and building slab levels
 Planting plans including retained trees, species, numbers, size and density of planting
 An implementation programme (phased developments)

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and the enhancement 
of biodiversity in accordance with Policy CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 
C 6 Any trees, shrubs or hedges forming part of the approved landscaping scheme (except 

those contained in enclosed rear gardens to individual dwellings) that die, are removed or 
become diseased within five years of the implementation of the landscaping scheme shall 
be replaced during the next available planting season by the developers, or their 
successors in title with an equivalent size, number and species to those being replaced. 
Any replacement trees, shrubs or hedgerows dying within five years of planting shall 
themselves be replaced with an equivalent size, number and species. 

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and the enhancement 
of biodiversity in accordance with Policy CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 
C 7 If, during development, contamination not previously considered is identified, then the Local 

Planning Authority shall be notified immediately and no further work shall be carried out 
until a method statement detailing a scheme for dealing with the suspect contamination has 
been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  The 

44



development shall thereafter not be carried out except in complete accordance with the 
approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure all contamination within the site is dealt with in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework, in particular paragraphs 120 and 121 and Policy 
PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 
C 8 Notwithstanding the details hereby approved, a scheme for the provision of additional 

biodiversity enhancements to achieve a net gain of biodiversity; for example the inclusion of 
a range of bird boxes to cater for a number of species including House Sparrow, Starling, 
and Swift and the planting of a range of appropriate native tree and shrub species shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The bird boxes shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details and provided prior to the dwellings 
being occupied and the native planting scheme shall be implemented in accordance with 
the approved details during the first planting season following the occupation of any 
building or the completion of development, whichever is the earlier.

Reason:  In the interests of the enhancement of biodiversity in accordance with Policy 
PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and Policy CS21 of the adopted 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.

 
C 9 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling the access to the development shall be 

constructed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: In the interests of Highway safety and to ensure that the new highways are 
adequately constructed, drained and lighted, in accordance with Policies CS14 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and PP12 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD.

 
C10 Vehicle to vehicle visibility splays should be provided prior to the new access being brought 

into use measuring 2.4m from the rear of the kerb line x 43m along the length of the kerb 
line for the junction of the access.  These splays shall thereafter be retained free from 
obstruction over a height of 600mm.

Reason: In the interests of Highway safety, in accordance with Policies CS14 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and PP12 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD.

 
C11 Before the access is first brought in to use, vehicle to pedestrian visibility splays shall be 

provided on both sides of the junction of the access and shall be maintained thereafter free 
from any obstruction over a height of 600mm within an area of 2.0m x 2.0m measured from 
and along respectively the back edge of the edge of the highway boundary.

Reason: In the interests of Highway safety, in accordance with Policies CS14 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and PP12 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD

 
C12 Adequate space shall be provided within the site to enable vehicles to park, turn and enter 

and leave in forward gear.  In accordance with the approved plans.  This space shall 
thereafter be retained for the purpose of parking and turning in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of Highway safety, in accordance with Policies CS14 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and PP12 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD.

 

45



C13 An adequate space shall be provided within the site to enable vehicles to park clear of the 
public highway. This provision shall be in accordance with details which have been 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of Highway safety, in accordance with Policies CS14 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

 
C14 Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction Management Plan shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This shall include 
amongst other matters:

 a noise management plan including a scheme for the monitoring of construction noise;
 a scheme for the control of dust arising from building and site works;
 a scheme of chassis and wheel cleaning for construction vehicles including contingency 

measures should these facilities become in-operative and a scheme for the cleaning of 
affected public highways;

 a scheme of working hours for construction and other site works;
 a scheme for construction access from the Parkway system, including measures to ensure 

that all construction vehicles can enter the site immediately upon arrival, adequate space 
within the site to enable vehicles to load and unload clear of the public highway and details 
of any haul routes across the site;

 a scheme for parking of contractors vehicles;
 a scheme for access and deliveries including hours.
 Details for the safe access provision for the pre-school facility (Happy Faces) during the 

period of construction.

The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved plan, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies CS14 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and PP12 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD.

 
C15 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans: 

* Location plan
* Proposed section and 3D visuals Plot 1 drg no 08 Rev A
* Proposed floor plan sheet 1 plot 2 drg no 09 Rev A
* Proposed floor plan sheet 1 plot 1 drg no 05 Rev A
* Proposed floor plan sheet 2 plot 1 drg no 06 Rev A
* Proposed elevations plot 1 drg no 07 Rev A
* Tracking plan drg no 02
* Proposed garages section and floor plan drg no 14 Rev A
* Proposed garages elevations drg no 15 Rev A
* Proposed section and context plan drg no 16 Rev A
* Proposed site plan drg no 01 B
* Proposed section and 3D visuals plot 2 drg no 13 Rev A
* Proposed floor plan plot 2 drg no 10 Rev A
* Proposed elevations sheet 1 plot 2 drg no 11 Rev A
* Proposed elevations sheet 2 plot 2 drg no 12 Rev A
* Arboricultural Implications Plan drg no 2498.AIP Rev A
* Tree Protection Plan drg no 2498.TPP Rev A

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning. 

46



47



This page is intentionally left blank

48



Planning and EP Committee 26 July 2016                                                                             Item 3

Application Ref: 16/00439/FUL 

Proposal: Increased height of eaves to single storey rear element and replacement 
with flat roof, partially remove frontage to south elevation of rear element, 
installation of new shop fronts to south and east elevations and creation of 
enclosed bin store to the rear

Site: 62 Cromwell Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2EG
Applicant: Mr Amjad Iqbal

Agent: Kenneth Mwaniki
Ken Mwaniki Architecture

Referred by: The Head of Planning On the grounds that the applicant is a Ward 
Councillor

Site visit: 21.04.2016

Case officer: Mr M Roberts
Telephone No. 01733 454410
E-Mail: mike.roberts@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

The site and surrounding area

The application site is a former public house, which has been converted to a restaurant on the 
ground floor with an office at first floor. It is located on the corner of Cromwell Road and Russell 
Street.  The property is in a poor state of external physical repair and appearance. The car park 
area, to the rear, is a frequent dumping ground of householder's goods that are no longer required. 
The site is situated approximately 125m north of the City Centre Boundary and is within a Local 
Centre within which are 3 retail outlets. Directly to the south of the site is a mosque. There is car 
parking provision for up to 3 cars along the site frontage to Russell Street. There is limited either in 
curtilage or on street parking in the immediate area. 

The Proposal 

The proposal is seeking planning permission for a new front to the retail unit and the restaurant. 
The elevations show a significant amount of glazing from ground level to a height of 2.1m. They 
have a vertical emphasis. The front entrance to the proposed retail store is within the south facing 
elevation of the building. The restaurant and take away unit have one entrance door in both its 
elevations, fronting onto Russell Street and Cromwell Road respectively.

Works had already commenced but have ceased. These, it is understood, involved internal 
changes to the building. The most noticeable change is the replacement of the pitched roof of the 
single storey element of the building with a flat roof and the increase in the height of its elevations. 
External steps to the basement under the floor of the restaurant are also proposed.

The splitting of the restaurant into two units and the change of use of these, one of these to retail 
use does not require planning permission and is therefore not discussed further.

49



2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
07/01098/FUL First floor rear extension to existing 

residential accommodation
Refused 25/09/2007

13/01093/LICSNG Licence review application - 067710 for 
Marisqueira

Comments 30/07/2013

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents.

CS15 - Retail 
Development should accord with the Retail Strategy which seeks to promote the City Centre and 
where appropriate the district and local centres. The loss of village shops will only be accepted 
subject to certain conditions being met.

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards.

Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation 
on this document ran from 15 January to 25 February 2016. 

50



At this preliminary stage the polices cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current 
application. Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report.

4 Consultations/Representations

PCC Transport & Engineering Services (07.07.16)
No objections

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 15
Total number of responses: 0
Total number of objections: 0
Total number in support: 0 

5 Assessment of the planning issues

Planning Issues

The impact of the proposal upon the character and amenity of the immediate area

The site is located within an area which has a mixed character comprising commercial and 
residential properties as well as a mosque. The property to the north of the site is residential.  The 
site was formerly a public house but has been operating as a restaurant for a number of years.  

The buildings poor state of repair would have the potential to be significantly enhanced by the 
proposed new frontages, as would the painting of the exposed walls of the building. The latter 
could be of a magnolia finish, for example, which is common in the immediate locality. The car 
parking area will be improved in its appearance. 

The enclosed waste storage area, immediately to the side of the retail store, is to have a boundary 
fence along four sides to screen the waste trolley bins. These will have to have closed boarded 
fencing to a height of 2m with a gate facing towards the pavement. 

The proposal would fit in with the mixed character and appearance of the area therefore accords 
with policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.

The impact of the proposal upon the amenities of the occupiers of the close by residential 
properties.

No.62 Cromwell Road is at the southern end of a terrace of dwelling houses and physically 
attaches to 64 Cromwell Road.

The proposed retail store is to occupy the single storey unit. Its rear shares a boundary with no.64. 
Whist the pitched roof of the single storey unit has been long established in its relationship with 
no.64 the proposal does seek to gain planning permission to remove the pitched roof and replace it 
with a flat roof. This has partly been implemented. The result would be that the wall of the single 
storey unit would be 0.6m higher than the elevations of the pitched roof. This is not considered a 
significant change and is therefore acceptable in terms of the amenities of the occupiers of no.64 
Cromwell Road. No objections have been submitted the neighbouring residents.

Highways implications 

The Local Highways Authority have raised a concern about the parking of vehicles within the 
frontage area of the building facing onto Cromwell Road. However because the application only 

51



relates to physical changes of the building and not to the uses the parking to the front it is not an 
issue that can be addressed as a part of this application.

6 Conclusions

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically:

The new fronts of the retail unit and restaurant and the enclosed bin store will improve the 
presence of the building in the street scene to the benefit of the character and appearance of the 
locality in accordance with policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy and polices PP02 and 
PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

7 Recommendation

The case officer recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions:

C 1 Within 3 months of the date of this permission details of the bin store shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the bin store shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: In the interests of the general amenities in accordance with policies PP2 and PP3 
of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD

 
C 2 Prior to the first occupancy of the restaurant//takeaway the external elevations of the 

building shall be rendered and painted either white or magnolia, or painted white or 
magnolia without the use of render.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance of the building in accordance with 
policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy and policy PP2 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD

 
C 3 The development shall implemented wholly in accordance with the following:

- 005/001/A - Site location plan
- 005/103/B - Elevation
- 005/004/E - Floor layout

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt
 

52



PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM 6

26 JULY 2016 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Members responsible: Councillor Hiller - Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, 
Housing and Economic Development

Contact Officer:
Reporting Officer:

Nick Harding (Head of Development & Construction)
Paul Smith (Compliance & S106 Manager)

Tel. 454441
Tel. 453468 

PLANNING COMPLIANCE QUARTERLY REPORT ON ACTIVITY AND PERFORMANCE APRIL 
TO JUNE 2016 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Director of Growth and Regeneration Deadline date : July 2016

That Committee notes past performance and outcomes.

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

It is useful for Committee to look at the Planning Service’s planning compliance 
performance and activity and identify if there are any lessons to be learnt from the actions 
taken. This will help inform future decisions and potentially reduce costs. This report is 
presented under the terms of the Council’s constitution Part 3, delegations section 2 para 
2.5.1.4.

2. TIMESCALE.

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting

N/A

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 In the first quarter of 2016/17 we received a total of 173 service requests (we usually 
average 150 cases per quarter). Taking into account the number of cases closed over the 
period (170 cases) as at 30 June 2016 we had 139 live cases being investigated / in the 
process of being resolved. The Technical Services Team acknowledged 96% of new 
service requests within 3 working days this quarter, well above the target of 80%. 97% of 
initial site visits were made within 7 days of the service request being received, again well 
above the 80% target. A total of 8 enforcement notices were issued in the quarter. 1 
enforcement notice issued in the previous quarter has been complied with. There was 1 
enforcement notice issued in the previous quarter that has not been complied with on time.

3.2 Court Action was agreed to be taken for the failure to comply with an enforcement notice at 
787 Lincoln Road (15/00005/ENFOTH).

3.3 No prosecutions have occurred this quarter. 

3.4 Please see the attached Appendix for further details of the Planning Compliance Team 
Quarterly Report on Activity & Performance.

4. IMPLICATIONS

53



4.1 Legal Implications – There are no legal implications relating to this report on 
performance, although the enforcement process itself must have due regard to legal 
considerations and requirements.

4.2 Financial Implications – This report itself does not have any financial implications

4.3 Human Rights Act – This report itself has no human rights implications but the 
enforcement process has due regard to human rights issues.

4.4 Human Resources – This report itself has no human resources implications.  

4.5 ICT – This report itself has no ICT implications.  

4.6 Property – This report itself has no Property implications.

4.7 Contract Services – This report itself has no Contract Services implications. 

4.8 Equality & Diversity – This report itself has no Equality and Diversity Implications, 
although the enforcement process has due regard to such considerations.

54



APPENDIX

INFORMATION ITEM: PLANNING COMPLIANCE TEAM QUARTERLY REPORT ON ACTIVITY 
& PERFORMANCE – (April to June 2016)

Description No. Comments
Complaints Received 173 The number of new cases has risen by 64 

from the last quarter 
Complaints Resolved 
(cases closed as % of 
cases received)

170 The number cases closed has risen by 41 
from the last quarter

Complaints on 
Hand/Pending

139/105 Cases on hand has risen by 47 since the 
last quarter and the number of cases 
pending has risen by 51

Enforcement Notices Served
Breach of Condition 
Notice

2 16/00033/ENFBCN  417 Lincoln Rd
16/00069/ENFMON 142 Cobden Ave

Planning Contravention 
Notice

1 16/00083/ENFREP 205 Eastern Avenue

Operational 
Development Notice

1 16/00118/ENFEXT 1116 Bourges Blvd

Change of Use Notice 3 16/00017/ENFCOU 202 Lincoln Rd
15/00432/ENFCOU Land R/O of 87 Fengate
12/00499/ENFACC 55 Cherry Orton Rd New 

Breach of Condition 
Enforcement Notice

1  15/00553/ENFBCN 187 Lincoln Rd

Total Notices Served 8  

Enforcement Notices Due and Complied With in the Quarter
Type Due Comment
Planning Contravention 
Notice

21.04.2016  16/00083/ENFREP 205 Eastern Avenue

Total Notices 
Complied with

1

Other Enforcement Notices Complied With in the Quarter
Type Due Comment
Change of Use Notice 17.12.2015 12/00297/ENFCOU Stables Paradise Lane
Total Notices 
Complied with

1

Enforcement Notices Due but Not Complied Within the Quarter
Site Date Due Comments

Change of Use Notice 04.05.2016 15/00528/ENFOTH  80 Storrington Way
Total 1

Other Notable Outcomes

Court Action Agreed
Failure to comply with enforcement 
notice. Summons Issued

1 15/00450/ENFCAR 787 
Lincoln Road

Total 1
Prosecutions
Type of Offence No. Comments, including cost 

55



awards

Total 0

Performance Measures
Description % / 

Time
Comments

% of cases closed within 8 weeks if No 
Breach found.

   95%  Target of 80%

Average time (weeks) to resolve all cases 
closed last quarter.

   11 
weeks

No Target

LPI % of complaints acknowledged within 3 
working days.

 96%  Target of 80%

LPI % of site inspections carried out within 7 
days of acknowledgement.

  97 %  Target of 80%

Cumulative Compliance Performance
Description Target This quarter Yearly 

average
Enforcement cases closed 
within 8 weeks if no breach 
found.

80% within 8 weeks    95% 80.6%

Acknowledgement of 
enforcement complaints.

80% within 3 
working days

96% 96.8%

Enforcement site visits carried 
out within 7 days of 
acknowledgement.

80% within 7 days    97% 97.75% 

56


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 14 June 2016
	5.1 15/02209/FUL - 8 Lincoln Road, Glinton, Peterborough, PE6 7AW
	5.1 1502209FUL - 8 Lincoln Road, Glinton, Peterborough, PE6 7AW

	5.2 16/00829/FUL - Land South of Former Crown Public House, Lincoln Road, Glinton, Peterborough
	5.2 1600829FUL - Land South of Former Crown Public House, Lincoln Road, Glinton, Peterborough

	5.3 16/00439/FUL - 62 Cromwell Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2EG
	5.3 1600439FUL - 62 Cromwell Road, Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2EG

	6 Planning Compliance Quarterly Report on Activity and Performance April to June 2016

